
 

White Salmon City Council Meeting 
A G E N D A  

July 06, 2022 – 6:00 PM 
119 N Church and Via Zoom Teleconference 

Hybrid Meeting: In Person and Via Zoom Teleconference 

Meeting ID:   843 5921 1578 Passcode: 682782 

Call in Numbers: 

                669-900-6833                  929-205-6099             301-715-8592 

                346-248-7799                  253-215-8782             312-626-6799 

I. Call to Order, Presentation of the Flag and Roll Call 

II. Changes to the Agenda 

III. Consent Agenda 
A. Task Order - Anderson Perry & Associates ($55,000) 
B. Approval for Modification of Existing USDA Forest Service Agreement ($4,234) 
C. Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2022 
D. Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 15, 2022 
E. Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2022  
F. 2022 May Budget Report 
G. Approval of Vouchers 

IV. Public Comment 
Any public in attendance at the meeting (either in person or via Zoom) will be provided 
an opportunity to make public comment of a general nature in the time allotted. No 
registration is required. Each person will be allowed three minutes for comment. 

V. Presentations 
A. PRIDE Heritage Month - Speaker Rachael Suits 

VI. Business Items 
A. Fire Emergency Services Plan of Action 

1. Presentation and Discussion 
2. Action 

B. Ordinance 2022-07- Rezone 
1. Presentation and Discussion 
2. Action 

VII. Reports and Communications 
A. Department Heads 
B. Council Members 
C. Mayor 

VIII. Executive Session (if needed) 

IX. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

A. Task Order - Anderson Perry & Associates ($55,000)

2



 
 
 

 
              
CONSENT AGENDA MEMO           
  
 
Needs Legal Review:    No.   
Meeting Date:   July 6, 2022  
Agenda Item:    Approval of Task Order for preliminary design of two booster pump stations. 
Presented By: Paul Koch, ICA  
 
Action Required:   
Approval of proposed Task Order for the pre-design of booster pump stations to enhance the water 
system.  Pump stations to be located at North Main and Simmons Road pressure zone and Los Altos 
pump station.  Design will include related water main replacements. 
 
Proposed Motion:  

None unless the agenda item is pulled from the Consent Agenda. If pulled for the Consent Agenda 
the following motion is recommended: 
 
Motion to approve the Task Order from Anderson Perry for the preliminary design of two booster pump 
stations and related system improvements in an amount not to exceed $55,000.  
 
Explanation of Issue:  
The city’s engineer, Anderson Perry, has proposed the preliminary design and ultimate construction of 
two booster pump stations to enhance the current water system. The concept of doing a preliminary 
design for these two pump stations came out of the work being done by the Water Plan team working 
with the engineer. It is recommended by the engineer that designing and constructing the two new 
booster pump stations will significantly add to the water demand flow to the service area. 
 
The North Main Avenue Booster Pump will serve the North Main/Simmons Road, Columbia High 
School, Henkle Middle School and other associated properties.  Due to the limited storage capacity at 
the Strawberry Mountain Reservoir, the new booster pump would provide domestic service at 
approximately 1,000 gallons per minute high demand flow to the area. The proposed new pump station 
would also include an emergency back up generator. This project would also include connecting the 
existing 8-inch diameter water main in North Main Avenue to the water main located in Spring Street. 
The installation of a new 12-inch diameter water main is also proposed, replacing the existing 10-inch 
diameter steel main that is a current source of leaks.  The preliminary design work will also include 
replacing the existing 4-inch steel water main on NE Spring Street with a new 8-inch or 12-inch water 
main. In addition, the design would include approximately 300 linear feet of 8-inch diameter main along 
NW Spring Street to provide service from the Strawberry Mountain pressure zone. This improvement 
would boost water pressures to this area to satisfactory levels. 
 
The new Los Altos Pump Station and water main would increase water service area. Currently the Los 
Altos pump station supplies approximately 175 gpm of water to the Strawberry Mountain Reservoirs 
from the Los Altos reservoir. The pre-design work will lead to improving this level of service and will 
increase capacity to 400-600 gpm. This project will include design of a new 10-inch water main 
replacing the existing 6-inch water main. The existing water main located at the intersection of NW 
Country View Road and NW Spring Street will also be upgraded to 10 or 12-inch diameter.  
 
Once the preliminary engineering assessment report is completed and reviewed by the city, a final 
document will be issued.  This will also assist the city in applying for State funds to help pay for these 
critical improvements. This task order for the preliminary design does not include the cost for final 
design. That would be a separate Task Order and expenditure decision made later by City Council. 

3



 
 
 

 
 
A copy of the proposed Task Order is attached for Council information. Funds to come from Water 
Fund. 
 
Staff/Committee Recommendation:  
It is recommended that City Council approve the proposed Task Order for preliminary design of two 
new pump stations to enhance the water delivery system in an amount not to exceed $55,000.  

4



5



6



7



8



File Attachments for Item:

B. Approval for Modification of Existing USDA Forest Service Agreement ($4,234)

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



File Attachments for Item:

C. Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2022

17



  

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 

City Council Meeting – Wednesday, June 1, 2022 

In Person and Via Zoom Teleconference 

DRAFT 

  

 

Council and Administrative Personnel Present 

  Council Members: 

Ben Giant 

Patty Fink  

Jason Hartmann 

David Lindley 

Jim Ransier 

 

Staff Present: 

Erika Castro-Guzman, Permit Technician 

Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman 

Mike Hepner, Police Chief 

Marla Keethler, Mayor 

Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator 

Stephanie Porter, Deputy Clerk 

Ken Woodrich, City Attorney 

 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Marla Keethler, Mayor called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. City Councilor Patty Fink arrived 
to the meeting at 6:02pm. There were approximately 6 members of the public in attendance in 
person and via teleconference.  
 

II. Changes to the Agenda 
 Stephanie Porter requested the following changes to the consent agenda: 

1. Remove item H, Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 12, 2022 
2. Remove items I, Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 18, 2022 

 
 Moved by Jason Hartmann. Seconded by Patty Fink. 

Motion to remove Consent Agenda items H Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 12, 2022 and I 
Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 18, 2022. CARRIED 5-0.  

 
III. Consent Agenda 

A. 2022 Mt. Adams Chamber of Commerce Lodging Tax Grant Agreement  

B. Public Works Board Construction Loan Contract - Amendment C  

C. Formal Task Assignment - Bell Design Locating of Right-of-Way Line Green Street  

D. Formal Task Assignment - Bell Design Locating Strawberry Mountain Reservoir Site 
Corners and Fence Locations  

E. Employment Agreement Amendment - Brendan Conboy  

F. April 2022 Budget Report  

G. Approval of Meeting Minutes - May 4, 2022  

H. Approval of Meeting Minutes May 12, 2022  

I. Approval of Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2022  

J. Approval of Vouchers 
 

18



City of White Salmon       

Council Meeting Minutes – June 1, 2022    DRAFT   Page 2 

 

Vouchers audited and certified as required by RCW 42.24.080 and expense 
reimbursement claims as required by RCW 42.24.090 as of this 1th day of June 2022. 
 

Type Date From To Amount 

Claims 6/1/2022 EFT EFT 3,928.00 

 6/1/2022 38133 38155 42,178.49 

   Claims Total 46,106.49 

     

Payroll    0 

     

Manual Claims 5/20/2022 38125 38128 23,994.92 

 5/25/2022 38129 38131 3,021,61 

 5/27/2022 38132 38132 10.00 

 .  Manual Total 27,026.53 

     

   Total All 
Vouchers 

73,133.02 

 
Moved by Jim Ransier. Seconded by Ben Giant. 
Motion to approve Consent Agenda as presented. CARRIED 5-0. 

 
IV. Public Comment 

Tammara Tippel, White Salmon Resident thanked the city council for their support through the 
Explore White Salmon Grant. Tammara noted the new billboard on I-84 in Troutdale OR 
promoting tourism in and around White Salmon.  
Tammara said there will be a July 4th parade with festivities this year.   
Marla Keethler, Mayor said she was also excited to see the billboard and as well as the videos 
on Instagram and other marketing items initiated by the Explore White Salmon Grant Program.  

 Marla said the city will have a booth at the 4th of July festivities. 
 

Charles Hogue, White Salmon Resident said thank you for the engagement and community 
involvement regarding the Walker House project. He said he respects the initiative the city took 
to engage the community’s input.  

 
V. Presentations 
 Jim Ransier, Council Member spoke to the history of PRIDE Heritage Month. PRIDE month is 

celebrated each year in the month of June to honor the 1969 Stonewall Rising in Manhattan. 
The Stonewall Rising was a tipping point in the liberation movement in the United States. PRIDE 
month includes celebrations events and memorials to those lost to hate crimes or HIV/AIDS. The 
purpose of PRIDE month is to recognize the impacts made by members of the LGTBQ 
community locally, nationally, and internationally. The first PRIDE march was held in New York 
City on June 28, 1970, the one-year anniversary of Stonewall Rising. The LGBTQA community 
continue to come together to advocate for equal rights.  

 

19



City of White Salmon       

Council Meeting Minutes – June 1, 2022    DRAFT   Page 3 

 

VI. Business Items 
A. Harvey Water Line Acceptance - Project 2020.01 

Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator presented the Harvey Water Line Extension 
information.  
Paul noted that under city code, the City Council must approve all agreements for the 
extension of water service. Paul said after City Council approval, the extension may be 
constructed. Paul said the final step is for the City Council to accept the water line 
extension as part of the City’s Water System.   
Paul said the proper process was not followed before the construction of the Harvey 
Waterline Extension. Paul noted that the city has created and implemented procedures 
to ensure all necessary processes are completed in the correct timeline moving forward.  
Ben Giant, Council Member asked why this happened. 
Paul responded that pieces of the process would be completed and then it seemed to 
stop at different stages, for reasons he was not able to pinpoint.  
 
Moved by Ben Giant Seconded by Jason Hartmann 
Motion to accept water line extension and approve the Water Line Extension 
Agreement between the City and Judith and Ted Harvey for the Painted Sky Short Plat. 
CARRIED 5-0. 

 
VII.  Reports and Communications 

 A. Department Heads  

 

 Mike Hepner, Police Chief  

 There have been 8 collisions in town due to more traffic and line of site issues. 
Chief Hepner has been working with Public Works to remedy these issues.  

 Chief Hepner noted his passion for strong Mental Health Care. The community 
partners met with Comprehensive Mental Health. He believes the 
communication to Comprehensive Mental Health was clear in the need for 
more care for our area. There will be an additional mental health co-responder 
added the existing program with Skyline Clinic at the end of June due to a grant 
received.  

 The blonde bear has been reported to Fish and Wildlife. Chief Hepner is working 
with Fish and Wildlife to have him humanely relocated. 

 Jason Hartmann, Council Member asked for what reasons the meeting was 
initiated with Comprehensive Mental Health.  

 Chief Hepner said when a person in crisis is taken into custody due to a civil 
issue that is not criminal, they are taken to meet with a Designated Crisis 
Responder (DCR). Comprehensive Mental Health has seven positions for DCR, in 
Klickitat County they have one. Comprehensive Mental Health depends on 
telehealth services (video meetings) and Chief Hepner finds this ineffective for 
crisis situations. He said this option works for the care in a jail setting but is not 
appropriate for an emergency situation. He said that Comprehensive Mental 
Health has noted they are experiencing staffing shortages due to a high 
turnover in the field.  

20



City of White Salmon       

Council Meeting Minutes – June 1, 2022    DRAFT   Page 4 

 

 Patty Fink, Council Member asked for details specific to the cause of the 
accident involving the young boy hit by a car on Wauna.  

 Chief Hepner said speeding has not been an issue, especially after the speed 
limit was lowered to 20MPH. Regarding the call involving the 10-year-old boy, 
he walked behind a car at the stop sign on Wuana and Jewett and was hit by the 
car turning onto Wauna from Jewett due to the driver not being able to see him 
behind the car. He was not in the crosswalk.  

  

Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman  

 Jeff stated that the Public Works team is working the clear the line-of-sight 
issues in town. He said Public Works will make time to address any safety issues 
that arise. Paul Koch is drafting a consent letter to be used for private property 
owners when a safety issue is flagged from their property. The intent of the 
letter would be to obtain written property owner consent for the public works 
team to either compete the work to alleviate the safety issue or confirm a date 
the property owner will have the work completed.  

 Public Works put up 25 new stop signs on Main and Estes. They will continue to 
work on this.  

 Jeff is putting together a bid to have the streets striped. He is also researching 
the potential of heat down crosswalks. He is suggesting a choosing a few high 
traffic crosswalks to see how they hold up before investing for all crosswalks.  

  Jeff said the shed has been removed from the from the Strawberry Mountain 
Reservoir.  

 The painting prep is complete on the park bathroom and ready for the mural to 
begin.  

 Jason Hartmann, Council Member said he would like to have key crosswalks 
identified to test the high traffic crosswalk stripping. He asked for an estimate to 
be brought to the next City Operations meeting.  

 David Lindley, Council Member stated that he has noticed the uptick in quality, 
productivity and responsiveness by Public Works and he asked to pass along his 
appreciation to the Public Works Team.  

  

 Ken Woodrich, City Attorney 

 Ken spoke to the line-of-sight issues due to vegetation originating from outside 
of the city right of way. He said that after a first warning to a private owner, the 
city needs a process that allows them to step in.   

  

 Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator  

 Paul stated he is working on a draft letter for vegetation clean up that is out of 
the right of way.  

 Jason Hartmann, Council Member asked staff to research if a hold harmless 
agreement should be included in the process if the city must respond.  

 Ken Woodrich, City Attorney said that there would be some form of 
indemnification on the document. 

21



City of White Salmon       

Council Meeting Minutes – June 1, 2022    DRAFT   Page 5 

 

 Paul reviewed the Boards, Commissions and Committee Ordinance that was 
established in 2021. 

 Stephanie Porter, Deputy Clerk 

 Master Meter representative came to City Hall to discuss the process necessary 
to change out meter reads from thousand gallon reads to a single gallon read. 
The process will require reprograming of the meter. There are 2 options to 
consider. The city may have the work contracted out. This option is cautioned as 
it can be costly. The city may consolidate the reprogramming of the meters to 
when the meter base station is installed at City Hall. This process requires its 
own reprogramming and would incur no additional cost.  

Stephanie said that the city is looking to move to single month reads beginning 
with October 2022.  

Patty Fink, Council Member asked about the status of the Post Office Street 
Delivery project. Stephanie stated that the information requested from the city 
has been submitted to the Postmaster. The postmaster is currently working on 
route creation which will ultimately be submitted to his supervisor for approval. 
Stephane said she has plans to follow up with the postmaster by weeks end.  

Marla Keethler, Mayor said that once there is a solidified plan for the post 
office delivery, there will be a detailed press release explaining the addition of 
the cluster boxes and the option of free PO boxes for those residents who live 
inside city limits that are not included in the cluster box delivery area identified.  

  

 B. Council Members  

 

  Jim Ransier, Council Member   

  Jim attended an events and festival webinar. Jim said the city should begin 
Springfest planning discussions July of this year. Jim said the city will be looking 
at how they can best partner with the Mt Adam Chamber and the Springfest 
Committee to support the festival. Jim noted that in the webinar event naming 
was discussed and that Springfest may benefit from a name change to 
something more specific. Jim said this has been shown to increase attendance 
by outside guests and vendors.   

   

  Patty Fink, Council Member 

  Patty noted that she may not be available for the July 6, 2022 meeting.  

 

C. Mayor 

   

 Marla Keelthler acknowledged the Uvalde School shooting that occurred on 
May 24, 2022. Marla said it is hard to imagine if something like that happened in 
our community and the “gut punch” knowing there have been 17 more mass 
shootings since that day.  

22



City of White Salmon       

Council Meeting Minutes – June 1, 2022    DRAFT   Page 6 

 

 Marla said that as leaders in this community she hopes to start a conversation 
that acknowledges that there is a public safety issue, without putting anyone in 
a corner.  

 Marla noted her goal is to have these hard conversations in a manner that is 
civil and moves the issues forward to action.  

 Marla spoke about the bridge full closure and noted that a local group will be 
heading to Washington DC in July 2022 to lobby for funding for the replacement 
on the Hood River bridge.  

 White Salmon residents are eligible for Hood River Pool Pass through the City of 
White Salmon June 1 – September 30, 2022. The city is working with the pool 
district to potentially provided bus shuttle to the Hood River Pool.  

 Columbia River Gorge Commission has their Climate Action Plan available for 
public comment. The city will be commenting thoughts relating to our own 
climate action goals.  

 Patty Fink, Council Member requested to be involved with the Transportation 
Plan update with the Department of Human and Health Services. Patty stated 
that it is important to her to see more services become available to the White 
Salmon community.  

 Water System Plan update is moving forward. The county has been brought into 
the conversation with a goal of better communication and efficient 
collaboration on how development is occurring not only as the city but as the 
water service provider. The goal is to have the Water System Plan adopted by 
this summer to be eligible for funding by Fall of 2022. 

 Park Plan open house is at the Fire Hall during Springfest.  

 Mike Hepner, Police Chief stated that if there is an active shooter in our 
community, they will go in; they will not wait. The police department has been 
trained extensively for these situations.  

 
VIII. Executive Session (if needed) 
 There was no additional Executive Session. 
 
IX. Adjournment  
 The meeting adjourned at 6:57p.m. 
 

Marla Keethler, Mayor Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer 

 

23



File Attachments for Item:

D. Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 15, 2022

24



  

 
 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 
City Council Meeting – Wednesday, June 15, 2022 

In Person and Via Zoom Teleconference 
DRAFT 

  
 
Council and Administrative Personnel Present 

  Council Members: 
Ben Giant 
Jason Hartmann 
David Lindley 
 

Staff Present: 
Marla Keethler, Mayor 
Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator 
Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer 
Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman 
Mike Hepner, Police Chief 
Erika Castro-Guzman, Permit Technician 
Bill Hunsaker, Fire Chief/Building Official 
Kenn Woodrich, City Attorney 

 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Marla Keethler, Mayor called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. There were approximately 24 
members of the public in attendance in person and via teleconference.  
 
Moved by Ben Giant. Seconded by Jason Hartmann. 
Motion to excuse Patty Fink and Jim Ransier. CARRIED 3-0. 
 

II. Changes to the Agenda 
 Jan Brending requested the following change to the consent agenda: 

1. Add to the Business Items as Item E, Cost-sharing Proposal for Using School District 
Buses for Free Transportation to the Hood River Pool. 

 
 Moved by Jason Hartmann. Seconded by Ben Giant 

Motion to add to the Business Items as Item E, Cost-sharing Proposal for Using School District 
Buses for Free Transportation to the Hood River Pool. CARRIED 3-0.  

 
III. Consent Agenda 

A. Personal Services Contract – The Watershed Company, Land Use Planning 
Services (Critical Areas Ordinances Update - $18,080, Shoreline Management 
Program Review/Update - $11,190, On-Call Services – Fees per Hour) 

B. Committee Appointments – Patty Fink 
C. Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 12, 2022 
D. Approval of Meeting Minutes – May 18, 2022 
E.  Approval of Vouchers 
 

Type Date From To Amount 
Claims 6/15/2022 38159 38202 161,950.44 

25



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 2 
 

   Claims Total 161,950.44 
     

Payroll 6/5/2022 EFT EFT 112,762.17 
  38156 38158 1,084.07 
   Payroll Total 112,762.17 
     

Manual Claims     
 .  Manual Total 0.00 
     
   Total All Vouchers 274,712.61 

 
Vouchers audited and certified as required by RCW 42.24.080 and expense 
reimbursement claims as required by RCW 42.24.090 as of this 15th day of June 2022. 
 
Moved by David Lindley. Seconded by Ben Giant. 
Motion to approve Consent Agenda as amended. CARRIED 3-0. 

 
IV. Public Comment 
 Heidi Venture, White Salmon Washington said she represents White Salmon Co-Housing. She 

said they hope to build an affordable triplex and referenced goals for housing in the city’s 
comprehensive  plan. She said White Salmon Co-Housing has been waiting over ra year for 
proposed zone changes that might allow the triplex.  Venture asked what can be done to help 
move forward the middle housing tool. 

 
 Shelly Baxter, White Salmon Washington thanked the city council for the stop signs at Spring 

and Main Street. She said she has ridden her bike up Dock Grade and would love to see a bike 
lane added on Dock Grade so that it can be used to go up and down versus having to go down 
on Jewett Blvd. Baxter said individuals can easily ride their bikes from Bingen to Dock Grade 
because there is a wide shoulder or sidewalk available along Highway 14. 

 
 Bruce Bolme, White Salmon Washington said he is a homeowner on Scenic and is a cofounder 

of White Salmon Co-Housing. He encouraged the city council to move forward with considering 
a middle housing tool. 

 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor said the city was awarded a grant to develop a housing action plan. She 

said it is intended to initially address the middle housing tool within the plan. Keethler said The 
White Salmon Co-Housing organization will be included as a stakeholder as that planning 
process moves forward.  

 
 Chris Heald, Loop Road Klickitat County said he supports middle income housing. He said he is a 

board member of Big River Land Trust who is working to create opportunities for middle income 
households. Heald said he hopes the trust can work with the City of White Salmon to held 
achieve these goals. 

 

26



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 3 
 
 Susan Svenson, White Salmon Washington said she supports bike safety and hopes to see 

Spring Street addressed. She said she likes the idea of using Dock Grade Road for bike access up 
and down to Highway 14. 

 
 Ray Klebba, White Salmon Washington thanked the city council for the stop signs at Spring 

Street and Main. He said he supports the idea of adding a bike lane on Dock Grade. Klebba 
asked the city council to consider changes the public works yard lights that are super bright. He 
said he does not believe they meet the city’s night sky lighting requirements. 

 
 Kirby Erdely, White Salmon Washington  said he was impressed with the decision the city 

council made on the Walker house. He said he has faith in the what the city council is doing. 
Erdely said he supports bicycle safety and noted that he recently had a friend run off the road by 
truck coming up the Bingen hill. He suggested adding signage on Highway 141 coming out of 
Bingen might be helpful. Erdely said suggested adding a bike lane on Vine Street as it is a key 
route off of Jewett. 

 
 Dana Shefler, White Salmon Washington said he supports bike lanes to Bingen. He said he is a 

former park district commissioner. Shefler said he is advocating that the city work with the pool 
district to find money to build the pool. He said the pool district is in a challenging time. 

 
 Anne Maguire, White Salmon White Salmon said she is a co-owner of the lot being considered 

for the White Salmon Co-Housing project. She said the group wants to build something that 
would fit into the neighborhood.  

 
 Gifford Pinchot, White Salmon Washington said he is part of the White Salmon Co-Housing 

group and supports the comments made by prior speakers. He said he hopes to be able to move 
forward. 

 
 Peter Wright, White Salmon Washington said he echoes the support for middle housing and 

would love to see attainable rental hosing built. He urged the city to move as quickly as possible 
on the missing middle housing code.  

 
 Kelcey K, White Salmon Washington said she supports the stop sign on Dock Grade Road. She 

said there are no sidewalks and vehicles travel very fast up Dock Grade. Kelcey K said it is a very 
scary intersection.  

 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor noted there is a public hearing for the proposed 4-way stop sign at Dock 

Grade and Oak later in the meeting. 
 
V. Presentations 
 Todd Jacobson, Washington Fish and Wildlife provided information to the city council regarding 

wildlife interactions in Klickitat and Skamania Counties. He said he has worked with the White 
Salmon police chief in the past. Jacobson said it is important that residents report wildlife sitings 
to the enforcement department of Fish and Wildlife. He said if it is a life-threatening situation 
then the individual should call 911. Jacobson recommended property owners remove 

27



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 4 
 

attractants such as garbage cans outside of the home, food & fat residues on barbecues, pet 
food containers outside of the home, etc.  

 
 Ben Giant, Council Member asked if it is illegal to hunt bears. 
 
 Todd Jacobson said August 1 – 15 is bear hunting season. He said people can protect themselves 

if they are in imminent danger.  
 
 It was noted that the dispatch center for Fish and Wildlife is not manned 24 hours per day and 

that residents should call 911 and report wildlife sitings after hours and that state patrol will let 
Fish and Wildlife know about the incident. 

 
 VI. Business Items 
 A. Parks Plan – Cameron McCarthy 

 Representatives from Cameron McCarthy provided information to the city regarding the 
park planning process including public outreach, needs, and goals.  It was noted that at 
the open house held on June 4 the pollinator garden was the top voted amenity desired 
in the park.   

 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor said it has been great to see all of the outreach in the planning 

process. 
 
 Jason Hartmann, Council Member said he is looking forward to the actual plan and feels 

the consultants are moving in the right direction. 
 
 David Lindley, Council Member noted that both Rheingarten Park and the Jewett Sports 

Complex properties are not owned by the City of White Salmon. 
 
 The city’s consultants noted that is not uncommon and it ties into the goals for 

partnerships and collaboration. It was suggested that long-term use agreements with 
responsibility for management of the facilities should be developed. 

 
 Ben Giant, Council Member asked if the school district was included. The consultants 

noted that they did speak with the Whitson Elementary School principal but not 
specifically with school district representatives. 

 
 David Lindley asked what the splash pad would fall into in the park plan. 
 
 It was noted it would show up in maintenance and facility upgrades.  
 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor said she appreciates the work that has gone into the plan so far. 

She asked where the idea for a natural play area came from. 
 
 Cameron McCarthy said it came up in multiple stakeholder interviews and that it was 

ranked in high importance. It was noted that it is a newer type of facility that is trending 
incorporating natural elements into play areas. 

28



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 5 
 

 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor said she feels it is important to incorporate water conservation 

goals with the splash pad and consider recycling water. 
 
B. Proposed Rezones 
 Jan Brending provided a brief overview of the proposed rezone of properties currently 

designated commercial to multi-family residential (R3). She noted that no action is being 
requested of the city council as an ordinance needs to be developed to enact the 
proposed rezone. 

 
 Erika Castro-Guzman provided additional information on the properties located on the 

west and east sides of Snohomish north of Tohomish and one property located east of 
the hospital property. She noted that a public hearing was held before the planning 
commission who recommended to move ahead with rezone of properties on the west 
side of Snohomish and the property located east of the hospital property. Castro-
Guzman said the planning commission did not recommend moving ahead with the 
rezone of the two properties located on the east side of Snohomish as the property 
owners desire to keep the property in commercial.  

 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor opened the public hearing on the proposed rezones. Keethler 

reviewed the requirements for disclosing conflict of interest and any ex parte contacts. 
Council members reported no conflicts of interest or ex parte contact. 

 
 Erica Miller, White Salmon Washington said she supports the proposed rezoning. 
 
 Shelly Baxter, White Salmon Washington said she do not live in the area. She said the 

area is very walkable including to parks and would hate to see it remain in commercial. 
 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
 Jason Hartmann, Council Member said he likes the idea of more infill and supports the 

proposed rezoning. He said because the property that the planning commission is not 
recommending for rezoned is already zoned commercial the city would not be losing it 
to commercial. 

 
 Ben Giant, Council Member said he agrees with the planning commission 

recommendation. 
 
 David Lindley, Council Member said he is also fine with the planning commission 

recommendation. 
 
C. Ordinance 2022-06-1106 Amending WSMC 10.24.015 Stop Intersections (Specifically 4-

way Stop at Oak and Dock Grade Road). 
 Jason Hartman, Council Member said the City Operations Committee did discuss the 

proposed 4-way stop at Oak and Dock Grade Road but did not have a specific 
recommendation and requested it be forwarded to the city council. 

29



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 6 
 

 
 Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer provided a review of the proposed ordinance. She noted 

that the city’s code does not current provide for any of the stop signs that are currently 
in place at Dock Grade and Oak.  

 
 Mike Hepner, Police Chief said that once the city put in a crosswalk at Dock Grade and 

Oak he feels a stop sign needs to be added due the speeding that occurs on Dock Grade. 
He noted that even if the city’s codes do not include stop signs that are actually in place, 
the Washington Administrative Codes (WACs) would address the issue. 

 
 Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman said he was told to remove the northbound sign at 

Dock Grade and Oak once the city’s waterline construction project was completed. He 
said that it is possible to trim some trees to open up the line of site at Oak and Dock 
Grade. Cooper said he does not feel that an LED lighted stop sign would help much. He 
said people still drive through the Main stop signs put in place at Spring Street. Cooper 
said the signage needed for a 4-way stop are currently available.  

 
 Jason Hartmann, Council Member asked Jeff Cooper what he thought about the 

recommendation. 
 
 Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman said he would put one up. 
 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor opened the public hearing. 
 
 Shelly Baxter, White Salmon Washington said the four-way at Spring and Main is 

working. She said she hopes the flashing LED lights will go away in the future. Baxter 
said the additional stop sign at Dock Grade Road and Oak will help slow down traffic so 
people can walk and bike in the area safely. 

 
 Barbara Beattie, White Salmon Washington said that has lives on Oak Street. She said 

it is a scary death wish to cross Dock Grade and does not want to see anyone get hit 
there. Beattie said a flashing stop sign might be an irritant. She said making Dock Grade 
a two-way road again is not a good idea. 

 
 Amanda Lawrence, White Salmon Washington thanked the city council for putting this 

on the agenda. She said children in the area have to cross Dock Grade to visit other 
friends and it is a barrier. Lawrence said there is increased traffic. She said that possible 
increased housing on the east side of Dock Grade should have access to walkability. 
Lawrence said she is in full support of the proposed stop sign. She said Oak is a great 
street to walk and bike on.  

 
 Kirby Erdely, White Salmon Washington said he is supportive of the proposal. He 

suggested using advisory lanes for bikes and pedestrians on Dock Grade that would help 
to slow traffic down. Erdely also suggested considering installing rumble strips or speed 
bumps. 

 

30



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 7 
 

 Marla Keethler, Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
 Jason Hartmann, Council Member said he likes the idea of a speed pump particularly 

since Dock Grade is not plowed in the winter time. 
 
 Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman said it is plowed but when the snow is too deep it is 

closed. 
 
 Jason Hartmann, Council Member said that signage alerting drivers that a crosswalk 

and/or stop sign is coming up would be helpful. 
 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor noted that a Voyent poll was sent out with 51 respondents – 36 

against and 15 for.  
 
 Ben Giant, Council Member said with two council members not present he would be 

supportive of tabling the decision until the next meeting. 
 
 Ken Woodrich, City Attorney said it is premature to consider a motion to table since a 

motion for a decision has not been made. 
 
 There was a consensus of the city council to postpone the decision on the proposed 

ordinance to the July 6th council meeting. 
 
D. Kinzey Water Line Acceptance – Project 2021.01  
 Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator provided a review of the Kinzey waterline 

extension. He noted this project is similar to the Harvey waterline extension. Koch said 
staff is recommending acceptance of the Kinzey waterline extension. 

 
 Moved by Jason Hartmann. Seconded by Ben Giant.  
 Motion to accept water line extension and approve the Water Line Extension 

Agreement between the City and Kinzey’s Country Place LLC for the Kinzey’s Country 
Place Short Plat. CARRIED 3-0. 

 
E. Cost-sharing Proposal for Using School District Buses for Free Transportation to the 

Hood River Pool 
  Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer and Marla Keethler, Mayor provided an overview of a 

proposal to provide free transportation to the Hood River pool using White Salmon 
School District buses and drives. There would be two pickup locations in White Salmon, 
three times per week and two times per day. The program would run from July 4 
through August 22 with pickup locations at Rheingarten Park and Rhine Village in White 
Salmon and Society Hotel and Daubenspeck Park in Bingen. The estimated cost for the 
program is $10,000. 

 
  Council Members and staff discussed the funding and how to prorate it. It determined 

that 32% of the pool district population comes from the City of White Salmon with 
$3,200 being the cost using that statistic.  

31



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 8 
 
 
  Moved by Jason Hartmann. Seconded by David Lindley. 
  Motion to provide up to $4,000 toward the cost of transportation using the school 

district buses and drivers to the Hood River Pool. 
 
  Moved by Ben Giant. Seconded by Jason Hartmann. 
  Motion to amend motion to provide for funding up to $3,200. CARRIED 3-0. 
 
  Motion as amended CARRIED 3-0. 
 
VII.  Reports and Communications 
 A. Department Heads  
 Mike Hepner, Police Chief said that Comprehensive Health will no longer be 

providing crisis work in Klickitat County effective August 6. He said it will be up 
to the Klickitat County Board of Commissioners as to how to replace. Hepner 
said crisis responders are needed in the county. He noted that all police officers 
are wearing body cameras as of June 10, 2022.  

 
 Bill Hunsaker, Fire Chief/Building Official said that the County Board of 

Commissioners has delayed implementing the fire ban for Zone 3 to July 1st. He 
said he is not concerned with the delay. 

 
 Jeff Cooper, Public Works Foreman said public works has found a drinking 

fountain that meets ADA requirements and will provide for bottle filling to 
replace the one in Rheingarten Park that does not work. He said public works 
staff has not been involved in the City Operations Committee meetings in the 
past. 

 
 Marla Keethler, Mayor noted that the committee normally meets on the 3rd 

Tuesday of the month but the schedule could be changed in the future. 
 
 Cooper said public works staff has been reviewing the costs to paint all of the 

crosswalks in White salmon. He said the cost and availability of paint has been 
an issue. Cooper said that a number of water valve lids associated with the 
Jewett water line project have broken. He said the city is working with the city’s 
engineer to determine what needs to be done. Cooper said a notice of a water 
violation has gone out to the public. He said the issue was false reads and the 
SCADA system not being able to provide adequate information in order for 
public works to respond. Cooper said public works responded to an issue of rock 
int eh Achor and Academy area to find that a cache basin needed to be cleaned. 
He said there is a maple street to close the Strawberry Reservoir that needs 
removed. Cooper said the lights at the Spring Street public works shop are 
needed for security reasons to protection the city’s water systema and 
equipment. He said public works staff meet with Paul Koch and the Mayor to 
discuss revamping Fireman’s Park.  

32



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 9 
 
 
 Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer said she has been out of the office the last two 

weeks of June. She noted Stephanie Porter is out of the office this week for 
conference training and that Erika Castro-Guzman has been manning city hall. 
Brending said she is working on getting the Request for Proposals out for the 
Housing Action Plan and getting a small works roster bid out for asphalt work on 
Jewett Blvd related to waterline project and for the Patton/Cherry Street 
overlay. 

 
 Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator said the city was notified by the State 

Department of Health of a water violation. He said notice will be sent to all 
water customers in both English and Spanish and will be posted on the city’s 
website. Koch said staff has been developing a development review process that 
involves a team of staff and forms to assist in the process. Erika Castro-Guzman, 
Permit Technician walked the city council through the development review 
packet.  Koch said the forms will help staff track and monitor developments that 
are occurring in White Salmon or even it the county where they might have an 
impact on city services. 

 
 Jason Hartmann, Council Member asked if the forms are handwritten or are 

fillable pdf. 
 
 Erika Castro-Guzman, said both can be used. 
 
 B. Council Members  
  David Lindley, Council Member said the Tree Board meet and looked a several 

tree issues. He said the Board has requested additional input from city staff.  
 
  Ben Giant, Council Member said he is enjoying the reports from the Interim City 

Administrator and hearing reports from Public Works.  
 C. Mayor 

  Marla Keethler, Mayor said Farmer’s Market started on Tuesday. She said a 4th 
of July event will be held including a parade and music at Rheingarten Park 
along with the event at Bingen Point. Keethler said she hopes to bring back 
“Let’s Talk White Salmon” at the end of the month. She asked for input from the 
council for future topics and plans to have one related to the bridge. Keethler 
said the city will be closed on Monday, June 20 in recognition of Juneteeth. She 
said that she and Paul Koch met with Senator Curtis King and spoke to support 
for the new pool. Keethler said it is exciting to see some enhancements for 
Fireman’s Park.  

  
VIII. Executive Session (if needed) 
 There was no additional Executive Session. 
 
  

33



City of White Salmon       
Council Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2022    DRAFT   Page 10 
 
IX. Adjournment  
 The meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m. 
 

Marla Keethler, Mayor Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer 
 

34



File Attachments for Item:

E. Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2022

35



  

 

 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 

Joint Meeting with Klickitat County Fire District 3  

Wednesday, June 21, 2022 

In Person and Via Zoom Teleconference 

DRAFT 

  

 

Council and Administrative Personnel Present 

  Council Members: 

Patty Fink  

Jason Hartmann 

David Lindley 

Jim Ransier 

 

Fire District 3 Commissioners: 

Thomas Montag 

Robert Connors 

Charles Virts, Jr 

Staff Present: 

Marla Keethler, Mayor 

Paul Koch, Interim City Administrator 

Stephanie Porter, Deputy Clerk 

Bill Hunsaker, Fire Chief 

 

Fire District 3 Staff: 

Wes Long, Fire Chief 

 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Marla Keethler, Mayor called the meeting to order at 6:22pm. There were approximately 27 
people in attendance in person and via zoom. Council Member Ben Giant was absent.  
 

II. Introduction – Purpose of meeting 
Wes Long, Fire District 3 Chief and Bill Hunsaker, City of White Salmon Fire Chief provided 
opening remarks pertaining to the current needs of each department, including how a joint fire 
effort would be beneficial.  

  
III. Presentation 

Bob Merrit, mHc Associates presented potential options for a joining of the White Salmon Fire 
Department and Klickitat County Fire District 3. The pros and cons of each option were 
addressed. The top priority being the support of the volunteer fire fighters.  
Bob spoke directly to community engagement to determine the level of service that is expected 
by residents and the benefits of addressing current service challenges regionally.  
Bob addressed funding including options and potential issues that could arise.  

 
 City Council and Fire Commissioners discussed the concepts presented.  

 
IX. Public Comment 

Karl Swanson, White Salmon Fire said the base number of volunteers is not strong. Visitors to 
our area do not understand the volunteer status. Karl said he would like to see recruitment as a 
priority and said a review of compensation could be helpful. Karl said that there are paid 
ambulance staff, but fire is most often responding to the same calls that are not fire related. Karl 
believes this creates a lack of urgency in response time. Karl said he would be supportive of 
joining the entities if it best serves the community.  
 

36



City of White Salmon       

Joint Council Meeting Minutes – June 21, 2022    DRAFT   Page 2 

 

Jeremy Grose, Fire District 3 Captain supports the integration of the entities. Jeremy said the 
messaging of the process will be super important. There has been a negative vibe in the past 
with a takeover mentality. Jeremy recommends being as transparent as possible through the 
process and clear messaging to the public of each step moving forward.  
 

X. Action 
The City Council agreed to staff moving forward with a draft report that outlines available 
consolidation options for the City of White Salmon Fire Department and Klickitat County Fire 
District 3 including a financial layout for each option. 

 
XI.  Adjournment  
 The meeting adjourned at 8:51p.m. 
 

Marla Keethler, Mayor Jan Brending, Clerk Treasurer 

 

37



File Attachments for Item:

F. 2022 May Budget Report

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



City of White Salmon
Budget Summary Report
As of May 31, 2022

Budget Year-To-Date Budget Year-To Date
Revenue Revenue Remaining 41.67% Expenditures Expenditures Remaining 41.67%

001 Current Expense
Finance 627,768.00 293,136.20 334,631.80 46.69%
Central Services (HR) 92,532.00 37,447.21 55,084.79 40.47%
General Government 106,986.00 40,013.13 66,972.87 37.40%
Building 161,940.00 64,590.18 97,349.82 39.89%
Community Services 915,734.00 24,900.17 890,833.83 2.72%
Planning 395,568.00 118,909.12 276,658.88 30.06%
Park 274,040.00 152,699.85 121,340.15 55.72%
Police 1,238,365.00 462,288.69 776,076.31 37.33%
Fire 140,744.00 32,718.89 108,025.11 23.25%

001 Current Expense 2,925,937.00 1,061,287.30 1,864,649.70 36.27% 3,953,677.00 1,226,703.44 2,726,973.56 31.03%

101 Street Fund 947,278.00 262,528.86 684,749.14 27.71% 1,109,763.00 224,854.15 884,908.85 20.26%

108 Municipal Capital Imp. Fund 71,624.00 33,854.31 37,769.69 47.27% 175,000.00 18,714.75 156,285.25 10.69%

110 Fire Reserve Fund 552.00 664.56 -112.56 120.39% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

112 General Fund Reserve 475.00 433.59 41.41 91.28% 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00%

121 Police Vehicle Reserve Fund 60,072.00 25,099.36 34,972.64 41.78% 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 0.00%

303 Hotel/Motel Tax 75,537.00 28,432.38 47,104.62 37.64% 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00%

307 New Pool Construction Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

401 Water Fund 2,681,012.00 1,012,188.62 1,668,823.38 37.75% 2,587,825.00 872,991.40 1,714,833.60 33.73%

402 Wastewater Collection Fund 1,030,351.00 425,649.10 604,701.90 41.31% 1,066,048.00 370,688.02 695,359.98 34.77%

408 Water Reserve Fund 0.00 44.80 -44.80 0.00% 228,397.00 41,005.21 187,391.79 17.95%

409 Wastewater Reserve Fund 100,188.00 42,185.92 58,002.08 42.11% 595,819.00 183,044.55 412,774.45 30.72%

412 Water Rights Acquisition Fund 161,103.00 68,764.09 92,338.91 42.68% 123,985.00 0.00 123,985.00 0.00%68



City of White Salmon
Budget Summary Report
As of May 31, 2022

Budget Year-To-Date Budget Year-To Date
Revenue Revenue Remaining 41.67% Expenditures Expenditures Remaining 41.67%

413 Water Bond Redemption Fund 111,608.00 46,548.01 65,059.99 41.71% 111,518.00 39,600.00 71,918.00 35.51%

414 Wastewater Bond Redemption Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

415 Water Bond Reserve Fund 19,572.00 8,219.86 11,352.14 42.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

416 Wastewater Bond Reserve Fund 72.00 94.24 -22.24 130.89% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

417 Treatment Plant Reserve Fund 22,908.00 3,595.33 19,312.67 15.69% 117,116.00 0.00 117,116.00 0.00%

418 Water Short Lived Asset Reserve Fund 200,096.00 83,461.75 116,634.25 41.71% 120,000.00 49,189.12 70,810.88 40.99%

420 USDA Rural Develop. Jewett Water 5,815,500.00 62,666.67 5,752,833.33 1.08% 5,815,500.00 0.00 5,815,500.00 0.00%

601 Remittances 5,191.00 1,795.44 3,395.56 34.59% 5,191.00 1,381.38 3,809.62 26.61%

Total 14,229,076.00 3,167,514.19 11,061,561.81 22.26% 16,309,839.00 3,028,172.02 13,281,666.98 18.57%

Note: Revenue does not include beginning balances and expenditures do not include ending balances

69



File Attachments for Item:

A. Fire Emergency Services Plan of Action

1. Presentation and Discussion

2. Action

70



 
 
 

 
              
AGENDA MEMO             
 
Needs Legal Review:     No.  
Meeting Date:    July 6, 2022    
Agenda Item:     Adoption of Plan of Work for Fire Emergency Services Study    
Presented By:  Paul Koch, ICA 
  Bill Hunsaker, Fire Chief 
 
Action Required 
Adoption of the proposed Plan of Action for the authorized fire emergency services study and analysis. 
 
Proposed Motion  
Motion to adopt the proposed Plan of Action for the fire emergency services study. 
 
Explanation of Issue 
For many years the city and Fire District 3 have talked about looking into a more formal arrangement for 
the delivery of fire emergency services in the region.  On June 21, 2022 the City Council and the Fire 
District 3 Board met in joint session to discuss the possibilities.  As a result of that meeting, both elected 
bodies directed staff to return with a proposed Plan of Action for the study.  Staff of both the city and the 
Fire District met and developed the attached Plan of Action that comes before city council for formal 
action at this time. In the proposed Plan of Action, a Task Force of citizens will be created, and this 
group will report to the City Council and the Fire Board with specific recommendations in December of 
2022. 
 
Future actions needed by the City Council will include approving the Interlocal Agreement with the Fire 
District for shared financial contribution for the project.  Additionally, the City Council will get monthly 
status reports from the Fire Chief and project consultant. 
 
Also attached to this report is a schematic that shows the  process to be used with the citizens Task 
Force to orient them and work with them as they prepare  a set of recommendations for Council 
consideration to be delivered in December 2022. 
 
City Council has the following options available currently. 

1. Take no action on the recommendation. 
2. Review the Plan of Action and make suggested changes before approval. 
3. Adopt the Plan of Action as proposed. 
4. Other action desired by the City Council 

 
Staff/Committee Recommendation 
It is recommended that City Council adopt the Plan of Action as proposed and as attached to this 
Memo. 

 
 

71



  

FIRE EMERGENCY SERVICES PLAN OF ACTION 
DATE:  June 29, 2022 

INTRODUCTION: For many years, the City of White Salmon and the District 3 Fire Agency have talked 

about looking into a more formal arrangement for the delivery of fire emergency services in the 

region.    On June 21, 2022 both elected boards met in joint session to further these efforts.  At the 

joint session, the Fire Board and City Council heard a presentation by consultant Bob Merritt of mHc 

Associates.  As a result, the City Council and the Fire Board directed staff to prepare a Plan of Action to 

be brought back to both policy boards for adoption.  The Plan of Action is to lay out every step and 

strategy in the process of arriving at the point of an election of the citizens regarding enhanced 

emergency services in the region. 

VISION: A regional approach to fire emergency response service that is more effective and efficient 

with dedicated funding. 

GOALS: Here are the goals of this Action Plan process. 

1. To establish a citizen task force to assist and develop a set of recommendations. 

2. To educate the citizens of both the city and the district to the benefits of a more formal 

operation and delivery of services. 

3. To create a more efficient and effective all risk emergency  service with dedicated funding. 

4. To establish an acceptable level of service for the region for all risks. 

STEPS IN THE PROCESS: 

 STEP 1:  Development of an Action Plan to achieve the vision and goals. (June 24-30) 

 Step 2:  For the Fire Board and the City Council to adopt the proposed Action Plan. (July 6-15) 

a. Fire Board meeting July 14. 

b. City Council either July 6th or 20th. 

STEP 3:  For the Fire District to contract with mHc Associates as consultant to assist with the 

 delivery of the Action Plan.     (July 14)   

Step 4:  For both jurisdictions to enter into an Interlocal Agreement dealing with City              

reimbursement to the Fire District for the cost of consultant.   (July 20)   

 STEP 5:  City determines source of the city share and approves Interlocal Agreement. (July 20) 

 STEP 6:  Consultant begins work. (July 21) 

 STEP 7:  Begin recruitment campaign for Citizen Task Force members. (July ) 

a.  10 members with equal representation between city and district. 

b.  Members selected through collaboration of consultant and both chiefs. 

  

72



 Step 8:  Convene Task Force and do training and orientation.  (August) 

 Step 9:  Begin work of Task Force (Late August) 

Step 10:  Begin regular monthly reports to City Council and Fire District Board by the two 

Chiefs and Consultant.  (July) 

Step 12:   Presentation of Task Force final report and recommendations to both Fire District 

Board and City Council.  (December 2022) 

EVALUATION CRITERIA: 

1. 10 citizens participated in Task Force. 

2. The fire volunteers are involved. 

3. The community supports the Task Force final recommendations. 

73



74



File Attachments for Item:

B. Ordinance 2022-07- Rezone

1. Presentation and Discussion

2. Action

75



 
 
AGENDA MEMO 
 
Needs Legal Review:    Yes 
Meeting Date:   July 6, 2022 
Agenda Item:    Proposed Rezone 
Presented By: Jan Brending, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
Action Required 
Adoption of the proposed change in zoning. 
 
Proposed Motion 
Motion to adopt Ordinance 2022-07-1107, Approving and Affecting a Rezone Classification of 
Certain Properties from General Commercial to Rsidential Multi-Family (R-3). 
 
Explanation of Issue 
The City of White Salmon proposed a change of zoning for a handful of parcels along 
Snohomish Ave. and one parcel east of Rhine Village from General Commercial (C) to 
Multifamily Residential District - 3 (R3). The lots in question are shown below.  
 

 
Fig 1: Klickitat County 
Parcel No: 
03111964021000, 
03111964020900, 
03111964010900, 
03111964010600, 
and 03111964010500 

76



 
 

 
 
Fig 2: Klickitat County 
Parcel No: 
03113084000200 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The City of White Salmon adopted the 2040 Comprehensive Plan on August 18, 2021. Prior to 
the adoption of the revised plan, the Planning Commission and City Council discussed rezoning 
the lots in question to bring them into alignment with the goals and policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The lone parcel near Rhine Village appears to have been missed in 
previous rezone discussions and is not a suitable location for commercial uses.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing and heard the request from City staff for the 
proposed rezones. 
 
The Planning Commission Recorded Meeding: https://vimeo.com/714164323 
 
A public hearing by the City Council was held on June 15, 2022. Because an ordinance is 
needed to enact the rezone, no action was taken at that time. The ordinance is now before the 
city council for action. An ordinance has been drafted and is included with this pacetk. 
 
Statutes of Bearing  
Chapter 17.88 Amendments and Rezoning 
 
A site rezone is a quasi-judicial process and shall be processed according to the procedures 
established for Type III land use decisions set forth in Chapter 19.10.040 Land Use 
Administrative Procedures. 
 
Findings  
17.88.040 - Criteria for approval. 
 
For a site rezone request to be approved, the council must find that: 
 

A. The proposal is consistent with the White Salmon comprehensive land use plan 
goals, policies, and map; 

77

https://www.white-salmon.net/sites/default/files/fileattachments/planning_commission/page/3431/white_salmon_comprehensive_plan-2021_volume_i-july_toclient.pdf
https://vimeo.com/714164323


 
 

 
Finding: Complies. The proposal is the result of discussion pertaining to the White 
Salmon Comprehensive Plan, policies, and map, initiated at the request of the 
Planning Commission and City Council.  

 
B. The proposal is consistent with the purposes of the zoning ordinance; 

 
Finding: Complies. The proposal is consistent with the purposes of the zoning 
ordinance.  

 
C. The proposal is consistent with the purpose of the proposed zone district; 

 
Finding: Complies. The proposal is consistent with the purpose of the R3 zoning 
district. The parcels slated to be rezoned are all currently in residential use or vacant 
land and not being used commercially.  

 
D. The subject property is suitable for the uses allowed under the proposed zone 

district; 
 
Finding: Complies. The proposal is consistent with the purpose of the R3 zoning 
district. The parcels slated to be rezoned are all currently in residential use or vacant 
land and not being used commercially.  

 
E. The proposed zone change and associated uses are compatible with neighboring 

land uses; and 
 
Finding: Complies. The proposal is consistent with the purpose of the R3 zoning 
district. The parcels slated to be rezoned are all currently in residential use or vacant 
land and not being used commercially. Further, adjacent properties suitable for 
commercial purposes have been retained as anchors to the commercial street 
frontage.  

 
F. The proposal will not be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety or welfare of 

the city. 
 
Finding: Complies. The proposal will not be detrimental to the public interest, 
health, safety or welfare of the city.  

 
Recommendation of Staff/Committee 
The Planning Commission recommended the City Council approve the proposed change in 
zoning for Klickitat County Parcels No: 03111964010500, 03111964010600, 03111964010900, 
03113084000200, and recommends denial to 03111964021000 and 03111964020900 from the 
current designation of General Commercial District (C) to the Residential Multi-family District 3 
(R-3). 

78



 
Ordinance 2022-07-1107 
Rezone From General Commercial 
Multi-Family Residential 
Page 1 

CITY OF WHITE SALMON 
ORDINANCE 2022-07-1107 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AFFECTING A REZONE CLASSIFICATION OF 

CERTAIN PROPERTIES FROM GENERAL COMMERCIAL TO RESIDENTIAL 
MULTI-FAMILY (R-3) 

 

  WHEREAS, as in adopting the City’s 2020 Comprehensive Land Use Plan, certain 

properties’ land use designations were changed from Commercial to High Density 

Residential/Mixed Use (HDR/MU); and 

  WHEREAS, to be consistent with the City of White Salmon’s Comprehensive Plan a 

change in the zoning is required from General Commercial to Residential Multi-Family (R-3); 

and 

  WHEREAS, the properties are identified as follows: 

• Klickitat County Parcel #03111964010900, 152 NE Snohomish Ave, Lot 9 Blk 1 

Nappers to WS NWSW; 19-3-11  

• Klickitat County Parcel #03111964010600, 170 NE Snohomish Ave, Lots 6,7,8 Blk 1 

Nappers to WS NWSW; 19-3-11 

• Klickitat County Parcel #03111964010500, 216 NE Snohomish Ave, Lot 5 Blk 1 

Nappers Add to White Salmon NWSW; 19-3-11  

• Klickitat County Parcel #03113084000200, Rhine Village Drive, Lot 2 SP WS 92-06 In 

NENE IRR Tracts WS 30-3-11; 

and 

  WHEREAS, this matter has been before the City of White Salmon Planning 

Commission for a public hearing on May 25, 2022 and in recognition of the findings contained 

79



 
Ordinance 2022-07-1107 
Rezone From General Commercial 
Multi-Family Residential 
Page 2 

within the staff report, which they adopted as their own as modified, the Planning Commission 

voted 5 to 0 to recommend City Council adopt the proposed amendments, as modified; and 

  WHEREAS, this matter came before the City of White Salmon City Council in a public 

hearing on June 15, 2022, and  

  WHEREAS, the City Council adopts as their own the findings as contained within the 

Agenda Memo titled “Proposed Rezone.” 

  NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WHITE 

SALMON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:   

SECTION 1. The White Salmon Zoning Map Designation  is changed as follows: 

• Klickitat County Parcel #03111964010900, 152 NE Snohomish Ave, Lot 9 Blk 1 

Nappers to WS NWSW; 19-3-11 hereby changed from General Commercial (C) to 

Residential Multi-Family (R3) 

• Klickitat County Parcel #03111964010600, 170 NE Snohomish Ave, Lots 6,7,8 Blk 1 

Nappers to WS NWSW; 19-3-11 hereby changed from General Commercial (C) to 

Residential Multi-Family (R3) 

• Klickitat County Parcel #03111964010500, 216 NE Snohomish Ave, Lot 5 Blk 1 

Nappers Add to White Salmon NWSW; 19-3-11 hereby changed from General 

Commercial (C) to Residential Multi-Family (R3) 

• Klickitat County Parcel #03113084000200, Rhine Village Drive, Lot 2 SP WS 92-06 In 

NENE IRR Tracts WS; 30-3-11 hereby changed from General Commercial (C) to 

Residential Multi-Family (R3). 

 

 

80



 
Ordinance 2022-07-1107 
Rezone From General Commercial 
Multi-Family Residential 
Page 3 

 

SECTION 2. The properties are identified in the attached maps shown as Exhibit A and 

Exhibit B. 

SECTION 3 – EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect five days 

following the date of its publication by summary. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of White Salmon at a regular meeting this 6th      

day of July 2022. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Marla Keethler, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jan Brending, Clerk/Treasurer 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kenneth B. Woodrich, City Attorney  

81



Exhibit A 

Klickitat County Parcel No: 03111964010500, 03111964010600, 03111964010900 

 

  

82



Exhibit B 

Klickitat County Parcel No: 03113084000200 

 

83


	Top
	A.	Task Order - Anderson Perry & Associates ($55,000)
	Agenda Memo - Task Order for preliminary design 2 booster pump stations
	AP Task Order Booser Station

	B.	Approval for Modification of Existing USDA Forest Service Agreement ($4,234)
	Agenda memoUSDA Forest Service Grant Mod
	USDA Forest Service Grant Mod Agreement
	USDA Forest Service Grant Mod Attachment

	C.	Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2022
	Council Meeting 2022.06.01 DRAFT

	D.	Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 15, 2022
	Meeting Minutes 2022.06.15

	E.	Approval of Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2022
	Joint Council Meeting 2022.06.21 - Fire District 3 DRAFT

	F.	2022 May Budget Report
	MAY 2022 BUDGET REPORT
	2022 May Budget Summary

	G.	Approval of Vouchers
	A.	PRIDE Heritage Month
	A.	Fire Emergency Services Plan of Action
	Agenda Memo - Fire Emergency Services Plan of Action 07.06.2022
	Fire Emergency Services Plan of Action 07.06.2022
	ESP Attachment

	B.	Ordinance 2022-07- Rezone
	Agenda Memo - Proposed Rezone
	Ordinance 2022-07-1107 Rezone
	Ordinance 2022-07-1107 Exhibits A and B

	A.	Department Heads
	B.	Council Members
	C.	Mayor
	Bottom

